
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 
REVISED  
AGENDA 

Winnebago County Courthouse 
400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room-8th Floor 
 

VIRTUAL MEETING – ZOOM  
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND PUBLIC COMMENT AVAILABLE VIA ZOOM  

WWW.WINCOIL.US/FEATURED-ITEMS/WATCH-COUNTY-BOARD-MEETINGS-ONLINE 
(WINNEBAGO COUNTY YOU TUBE LIVE) 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and in order to protect the safety of County Board members, 
staff and the public, the public is strongly encouraged to not physically attend the meeting and 

to attend and participate in the meeting via the instructions set forth above. 
 

 
Thursday, May 14, 2020 

6:00 p.m.  
 

1. Call to Order  .................................................................................. Chairman Frank Haney 
 
2. Agenda Updates  ............................................................................. Chairman Frank Haney 
 
3. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
4. Invocation ............................................................................. Board Member Steve Schultz 
 
5. Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Presentation – COVID-19 Update 
  

6. Public Comment ................................................................................. Registered Speakers 
Members of the public may address the Board by submitting their request no later than 2 hours prior 
to the start of the meeting. Contact www.wincoil.us or (815) 319-4225 for guidelines. 
 

7. Board Member Correspondence ............................................................... Board Members 
 

8. Chairman’s Report .......................................................................... Chairman Frank Haney 
 

9. Announcements & Communications .................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)  

 

http://www.wincoil.us/FEATURED-ITEMS/WATCH-COUNTY-BOARD-MEETINGS-ONLINE
http://www.wincoil.us/


www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

10. Consent Agenda .............................................................................. Chairman Frank Haney 
A. Raffle Report 
B. Layover of March 26, 2020 minutes, April 9, 2020 minutes and April 14, 2020 minutes  

 
11. County Administrator’s Report ..................... Interim County Administrator Steve Chapman 
 

12. Department Head Updates…………………………………………………………………….Department Heads 
 

13. Standing Committee Reports .......................................................... Chairman Frank Haney 
 

A. Finance Committee ................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. An Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of not to Exceed $4,000,000 of General 

Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2020A, of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois for the Purpose of  Constructing, Maintaining and Improving 
County Highways, Roads and Bridges, the Pledge of Certain Revenues to the Payment 
of Principal and Interest on said Bonds and the Levy of a direct annual tax Sufficient to 
Pay Such Principal and Interest if the Pledged Revenues are Insufficient to Make Such 
Payment, and Providing for the Sale of the Bonds to the Purchaser Thereof. 

3. An Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of not to Exceed $2,600,000 of General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2020B of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois for the Purpose of Refunding Certain Outstanding Alternate Bonds 
of said County, the Pledge of Certain Revenues to the Payment of Principal and Interest 
on said Bonds and the Levy of a direct annual tax Sufficient to Pay Such Principal and 
Interest if the Pledged Revenues are Insufficient to Make Such Payment, and the Sale 
of said Bonds to the Purchaser Thereof. 

4. An Ordinance Imposing a Special Retailers’ Occupation Tax for Mental Health Pursuant 
to the Authority Granted in Chapter 55, Act 5, Section 5-1006.5 of the Illinois Compiled 
Statutes to be Laid Over 

5. Resolution Adopting Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Policy 
6. An Ordinance to Modify 2019 Property Tax Year Late Tax Penalties to be Laid Over 

B. Zoning Committee ...................................................... Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-02-20 A map amendment to rezone +/- 1.31 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the CC, Community Commercial District for the property that is commonly 
known as 2053 N. Winnebago Road, Winnebago, IL 61088 in Winnebago Township, 
District 1  

2. Z-03-20 A map amendment to rezone +/- 1.12 acres from the RR, Rural Residential 
District (a sub-district of the RA District) to the CN, Neighborhood Commercial District 
for the property that is commonly known as 6812 Harrison Avenue, Rockford, IL 
61108 in Rockford Township, District 8  

3. Resolution Directing the Zoning Board of Appeals to Conduct a Public Hearing on 
Certain Unified Development Ordinance Amendments Regarding Permissible Uses in 
Select Residential Districts 

4. Committee Report 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

 
C. Economic Development Committee ................................. Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............. Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
 

E. Public Works Committee ........................................... Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety Committee……………………………………….. Aaron Booker, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Approving Subcontractor Agreement for the Department of Justice 

Violence Against Women FY15 Justice for Families Grant 
3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a First Extension of Agreement Between 

Winnebago County, Illinois and Remedies Renewing Lives for the Domestic Violence 
Mentor Court Technical Assistance Grant 

 
G. Personnel and Policies Committee…………………………..David Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing Gallagher Pharmacy Consulting Services to Conduct a Pharmacy 

Benefit Manager (PBM) Procurement Review and Contract Negotiation Effective 
January 1, 2021 

 
14. Unfinished Business ........................................................................ Chairman Frank Haney 
 

15. New Business………………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Frank Haney 
A. Chicago Rockford International Airport Board – Compensation $150 per month 

1. Mike Schablaske (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2020 – May 2023  
2. Tom Dal Santo (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2020-May 2023 
 

B. Winnebago County Board of Review – Compensation $31,999 per year  
1. Tom Ewing (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2020 – May 2022 

 
       C.   Winnebago County Board District 4 
              1. Brad Lindmark (Filling Vacated Seat) May 2020 – November 2020 
 

 
16. Adjournment .................................................................................. Chairman Frank Haney 
 
Next Meeting:  Thursday, May 28, 2020 



 

CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: May 14, 2020 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 
1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission 

the following: 
 

a. Federal Register / Vol. 85, No. 77 / Tuesday, April 21, 2020 / Notices 
 
b. Acceptance Review for Braidwood/Byron Application to Revise TS 5.6.5, “Core 

Operating Limits Report” 
 
c. Public Meeting Regarding Draft NUREG-1409, “Backfitting Guidelines,” Revision 1 
 
d. Byron Station, Unit 1 and 2; Dresden Nuclear Power Station, Units 2 and 3; James 

A. Fitzpatrick Nuclear Power Plant; LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2; Limerick 
Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; and Quad Cities Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 
and 2 – Request to Use Provisions in the 2013 Edition of the ASME Boiler and 
Pressure Vessel Code for Performing Non-Destructive Examinations (EPID L-2019-
LLR-0080) 

 
e. Byron Station – Integrated Inspection Report 05000454/202001 and 

05000455/202001 
 
f. Braidwood Station, Unit 2; Byron Station, Unit No. 1; Calvert Cliffs Nuclear Power 

Plant, Unit 1 LaSalle County Station, Unit 1; Limerick Generating Station, Unit 1, 
Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Unit 2; Quad Cities Nuclear Power Station, Unit 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

2; and R.E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant – Proposed Alternative to the Submittal 
Schedule for Certain Reports (COVID-19) (EPID L-2020-LLR-0066)  

 
g. Federal Register / Vol. 85, No. 87 / Tuesday, May 5, 2020 / Notices 

 
2. County Clerk Gummow received the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency the 

following: 
 

a.  Notice of Application for Manage Waste (LPC-PA16) Description of Project: 
Application providing a fourth quarter 2019 alternate source demonstration in 
accordance with Condition VIII.15 OF Permit Modification N. 78. 

 
b.  Notice of Application for Manage Waste (LPC-PA16) Description of Project: 

Application providing an alternate source demonstration for fourth quarter 2019 
in accordance with Condition VIII.15 of Permit Modification No. 10. 

 
c. Notice of Application for Manage Waste (LPC-PA16) Description of Project: 

Significant Permit Modification Application for an ALTERNATE Source 
Demonstration at Landfill No. 2. 

 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 
REPORT 



 

DEPARTMENT 
HEAD UPDATES 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



















































































































































































 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 May 14, 2020  
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
        
 PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 
 

  TO BE VOTED ON:   

              ZC Recommends:   APPROVAL (5-0) 

2. Z-03-20  A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE +/- 1.12 ACRES FROM THE RR, 
RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) TO 
THE CN, NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, requested by Michael T. 
Castronovo, property owner, for the property that is commonly known as 6812 Harrison 
Avenue, Rockford, IL 61108 in Rockford Township. 
PIN: 12-34-453-021 C.B. District: 8 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: NO 

 ZBA Recommends: APPROVAL (6-0) 
 ZC Recommends:   APPROVAL (6-0) 
 
 TO BE REFERRED TO ZONING COMMITTEE: 
 
3. Resolution Directing the Zoning Board of Appeals to Conduct a Public Hearing on Certain 

Unified Development Ordinance Amendments Regarding Permissible Uses in Select 
Residential Districts  

   ZC Recommends:   TBD 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

4.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - NONE 

 
 

  
   

1. Z-02-20 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE +/- 1.31 ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE CC, COMMUNITY 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, requested by Winnebago Animal Clinic, Inc., property 
owner, represented by Dr. Jared Williams, Veterinarian, for the property that is commonly 
known as 2053 N. Winnebago Road, Winnebago, IL 61088 in Winnebago Township. 
PIN: 14-04-100-003 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: Moderate Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES 

 ZBA Recommends: APPROVAL (6-0) 



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 



 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 COMMITTEE 



 

 

 Page 1  
  

Winnebago County Board 
Public Safety Committee Meeting 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 303 

Rockford, IL 61101 
 

Thursday, February 6, 2020 
 5:00 PM  

 
Present: Others Present: 
Aaron Booker, Chairman 
Fred Wescott 
Dorothy Redd 
John Butitta 
 
Absent: 
Angie Goral 
Dan Fellars 
Paul Arena 
 

Steve Chapman, Interim County Administrator 
Jim Noe, Rosecrance 
 
 
 

AGENDA:       
A. Call to Order  
B. Roll Call 
C. Approval of November 20, 2019 Minutes 
D. Public Comment  
E. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Agreement with 

Rosecrance for the Jail Alternate Treatment Program 
F. Other Matters 
G. Adjournment 

 
Chairman Booker called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.  
 
Motion to approve the Minutes of November 20, 2019                                     
Moved:  Mr. Butitta, Seconded:  Mr. Wescott. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment 
Chairman Booker omitted reading the Public Comment section of the Agenda due to no one present 
to speak. 
 
Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Agreement with 
Rosecrance for the Jail Alternate Treatment Program 
Motion by Mr. Butitta and Seconded by Mr. Wescott. 

• A discussion followed.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Other Matters 
None 



 

 

 Page 2  
  

 
Motion to Adjourn.  Moved:  Mr. Wescott, Seconded:  Ms. Redd.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Amy Ferling 
Administrative Assistant 
 
 













































 

PERSONNEL & 
POLICIES 

COMMITTEE 
 































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: May 12, 2020 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
 Mike Schablaske of Rockford, Illinois, to serve a 5-year term on the Harlem Cemetery 
Association Board. 
 

About the Chicago Rockford International Airport Board 
Location:  2 Airport Circle, Rockford, IL 61109 
Service Description:  Provides passenger service, cargo facilities, general aviation services with 

lease of property for commercial and industrial facilities 

Board Composition:  Seven Members 2 appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman 
with the advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Airport Authorities Act passed in 1946 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Funded through property taxes, charges for services, replacement tax and 
lease income 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 







 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: May 12, 2020 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
 Tom Dal Santo of Rockford, Illinois, to serve a 5-year term on the Harlem Cemetery Association 
Board. 
 

About the Chicago Rockford International Airport Board 
Location:  2 Airport Circle, Rockford, IL 61109 
Service Description:  Provides passenger service, cargo facilities, general aviation services with 

lease of property for commercial and industrial facilities 

Board Composition:  Seven Members 2 appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman 
with the advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Airport Authorities Act passed in 1946 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Funded through property taxes, charges for services, replacement tax and 
lease income 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: May 10, 2020 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Thomas Ewing of Rockford, Illinois, 61114 to serve a 2-year term from May 2020–May 2022 on 
the Board of Review. 
 
 

About the Winnebago County Board of Review 
Location:  County Administration Building, 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL  61101 
Service Description:  Provides property owners a venue to resolve assessed value complaints.  

Serves as the final local administrative review for assessment complaints. 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board.  No more than two of the Board 
Members may be affiliated with the same political party. 

Origin of Entity: Property Tax Code 35 ILCS 200 Section 6 and Section 16 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Funded through the General Fund which includes property tax revenue. 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: Each Board member receives $27,000 per year.  The Chairman receives 
$30,000 per year.  They are paid bi-weekly. 

 








	Agenda
	Chairman's Report
	Announcement & Communications
	Consent Agenda
	Administrator's Report
	Department Head Updates
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance Issuance not to Exceed $4,000,000 of Obligation Bonds 2020A for Roads & Bridges
	Ordinance Issuance not to Exceed $2,600,000 of Obligation Bonds 2020B Purpose of Refunding Outstanding Bonds
	Ordinance Imposing a Special Retailers' Tax for Mental Health
	Resolution Adopting Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Policy
	Zoning Committee
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Public Works Committee
	Public Safety Committee
	Resolution Approving Subcontractor for FY15 Justice for Families Grant
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Extension of Agreement between Winnebago County and Remedies Tech Assistance
	Personnel and Policies Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Gallagher Pharmacy Benefit Manager Procurement
	Unfinished Business
	New Business



